SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 3, 2013
1:42 p. m

1: 42: 42 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:42 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Wwnn Menefee, Chief of Operations, Division of Mning, Land
& Water, Department of Natural Resources; Daniel Sullivan,
Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources; Ml anie
Brown, Self, Bristol Bay; Paul Fuhs, Alaska Sea Farns;
Lindsey Bloom Al aska |ndependent Fishernen's Marketing
Associ ation; Janes Sullivan, Southeast Al aska Conservation
Council; Jennifer Hanlon, Environnental Specialist, Central
Council of the Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes of Al aska;
Rick Hal ford, Self.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Levi Hohl, Alaska Fly Anglers Inc., Kodiak; G na Friccero,
Sel f, Kodiak; Jody Malus, Self, Bethel; Harold Bhlem Self,
Val dez; Diann Darnall, Self, Fairbanks; Sylvia Panzarella,
Sel f, Anchorage; Tim Troll, Executive Director, Bristol Bay
Heritage Land  Trust, Anchor age; Brian Kraft, Vi ce-
President, Katmai Service Providers, Anchorage; Sam Snyder,
Sel f, Anchorage; Melissa Heuer, Self, Anchorage; Katherine
Huber , Sel f, Anchor age; Dorothy B. Lar son, Tri bal



Adm nistrator, Curyung Tribal Council, D llingham Bil
Mai nes, Self, Dillingham Dan Dunaway, Self, Dillingham
Tom Tilden, Self, Dllingham Mke Byerly, Self, Honer;
Jessica Tenhoff, Self, Honmer; Lee Tenhoff, Self, Honer; Hal
Shepherd, Center for Wter Advocacy, Cty of Eim and
Norton Bay Inter-Tribal Wtershed Council, Kenai; Mchele
Martin, Self, Kenai; Nck Cassara, Self, Mt-Su; Jim
Colver, Self, Mat-Su; Dave Atcheson, Self, Kenai; Nell
WIIlians, Tr out Unlimted, Anchor age; Rachael Petr o,
President and CEO  Alaska State Chanber of Commerce,
Anchorage; Katherine Carscallen, Self, D llingham Dw ght
curl ey, Sel f, Anchorage; Kristin Carpenter, Executive
Director, Copper R ver Wtershed Project, Cordova; Joy
Hunt i ngt on, Tanana Chiefs Conference, Fai r banks; Eric
Nassuk, Native Village of Koyuk, Koyuk; Ronald Barnes,
| ndi genous Peoples & Nations Coalition, Dillingham Ronn
Burnett, Self, Anchorage; N kos Pastos, Self, Seward; Andy
Rogers, Self, Anchorage; Verner WIlson, Self, Dillingham
Kim WIIlians, Sel f, D |1'i ngham Jenni fer Harri son,
Executive Director, Chickaloon Native Village, Dillingham
Gayl a Wwods, Self, Dillingham

SUMVARY
SB 18 BUDGET: CAPI TAL
SB 18 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD

CSHB 77( RES)
LAND USE/ DI SP/ EXCHANGES; WATER RI GHTS

CSHB 77(RES) was HEARD and HELD in committee
for further consideration.

#hb77
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 77(RES)

"An Act relating to the Alaska Land Act, including
certain authorizations, contracts, |eases, permts, or
ot her disposals of state |and, resources, property, or
interests; relating to authorization for the use of
state land by general permt; relating to exchange of
state | and; relating to procedures for certain
adm ni strative appeal s and requests for
reconsideration to the conm ssioner of nat ur al
resources; relating to the Alaska Water Use Act; and
providing for an effective date."

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



1:43: 02 PM

Co-Chair Meyer observed that the commttee would take
public testinony on HB 77 as soon as possible, but that he
wanted to give the admnistration a chance to finish
explaining the bill first. He added that the adm nistration
had agreed to cone back for questions after the public
testinmony. He offered apologies to the public for the
del ay, but opined that the information would be useful to
testifiers, as well as comm ttee nenbers.

WYNN MENEFEE, CHI EF OF OPERATIONS, DIVISION OF M NING LAND
& WATER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, began to speak to
the briefing paper (copy on file). He related that the
previ ous presentation had left off onitem?7.

M. Menefee began to speak to item 8 and stated that the
current statutes specified that if water was noved from one
hydrologic wunit to another wthout authorization, the
of fender would be guilty of a msdeneanor. He clarified
that the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) wanted to
focus on a significant amount of water and pointed out that
the item added "significant anount of water" to the
| anguage. He shared that there were only 6 hydrologic units
in the state and that although there was not a |ot of
i nstances of this offense happening, the departnent wanted
to clarify the issue to avoid confusion.

M. Menefee addressed item 9 of the briefing paper and
stated that it addressed a part of the statutes that dealt
w th appeals. He explained that the item changed two things
in the statutes. The first change required an entity to be
i nvol ved upfront in the process in order to be eligible to
appeal a decision that the departnent gave a 30-day notice
on. He explained that the departnment was trying to get
people to participate in the process so that concerns could
be addressed while the process was still ongoing rather
than doing so after the fact. He stated that currently the
standard for being able to appeal was if soneone was
"aggrieved" by the decision and offered that this nmeant
sinply "upset"” to nost people. He related that people wote
appeals to the commssioner that expressed dislike of
decisions, but that they did not offer any substantial
reason as to why. He pointed out that the item changed the
| anguage from "aggrieved' to "substantially and adversely
affected.” He explained that the word "substantial™ ensured
that there would be enough information for the departnent

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



to be able to address concerns and that “adversely
affected" was intended to nmake sure that soneone was harned
or had experienced sonething that adversely affected them

M. Menefee spoke to item 10 and stated that it clarified
that the opening and closing of the right to file mnera
or mning clains were noticed to the public. He pointed out
that the current statute only referenced mneral closing
orders and that the change would nmake it so that the
departnment would also have to notify the public when it
reopened the cl ai m process.

M. Menefee discussed item 11 and explained that the state
was the platting authority in the unorganized borough. He
stated that currently DNR had to be approached to subdivide
a parcel of land in the unorganized borough and expounded
that if there were no public easenents involved, there were
no public coments because it did not have an effect on
anyone; however, in these instances, the departnent stil
hel d 30 days of public review and charged the applicant for
the process of notification. He stated that the departnent
wanted to renove the statutory requirenent of the 30-day
public review and posting in the papers for instances in
whi ch there was a subdivision with no easenents. He pointed
out that the change would save the applicant costs and
time.

M. Menefee addressed item 12, which dealt with DNR s |and
sales. He explained that the departnent conducted auctions
for land sales, many of which were conducted online. He
pointed out that the item clarified the definition of
auction to include online public auctions and added that
the departnent conducted nmany of its sales through the
i nternet.

1:48: 44 PM

M. Menefee addressed item 13 and stated that it dealt wth
best interest determnations for disposals of interest. He
pointed out that currently, the departnent was only
required to conplete one witten finding. He reported that
the departnent often issued two witten findings, which
included a prelimnary and a final decision. He explained
that the department offered two findings when it thought
that it was appropriate in order to give people an
opportunity to comrent on the prelimnary decision. He
stated that the change would add in statute that DNR "may"

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



include two witten findings, which would reinforced a
practice that the departnent was already using to be nore
i ncl usive of the public.

M. Menefee reported that there were mnor statutory
revisions throughout the bill that consisted of wording
clarifications that were intended to nmake it easier to read
and understand the statutes.

Co- Chair Meyer noted the conmttee' s attendance.

Senator Hoffman stated that he had accessed the online
report regarding water reservations that were pending and
granted to a person. He observed that in the last 6 years,
nmoney had been given to DNR to address |egislators'
concerns regarding the departnent's lack of progress on
"taking up" permts. He offered that the departnent had
approved 4 permts in 2012, 11 permts in 2011, and 10
permts in 2010 and pointed out that the nunber of permts
being issued seened to be going down. He stated that the
permts that were approved were from the Departnent of Fish
and Ganme (ADFG), DNR, and the Bureau of Land Mnagenent
(BLM and opined that the vast nmjority of permts that
still needed action by the departnent were from other
entities.

Senator Hoffman inquired what was causing the holdup wth
the permts, why there was a downturn in the nunber being
i ssued, and where the state was going with permtting. He
further inquired if the state was reducing the nunber of
permts being issued and wondered what the tine franme was
for permts that were pending. He related that there had
been 61 permts approved and that there were 371 still
out standing, 200 of which were from the fish and wildlife
service. He asked when the departnment would get caught up
with the backlog of permts and how the |egislation would
hel p acconplish that. He wondered if the departnent needed
additional funds to address the issue and pointed out that
over the course of the last 4 years, the |egislature had
been giving the departnment noney to address the backlog in
t he processing of applications.

DANI EL  SULLI VAN, COWMM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, inquired if Senator Hoffman was referring to
wat er reservation applications. Senator Hoffman replied in
the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



Comm ssi oner Sullivan responded to Senator Hof f man' s
guestions and offered that the departnent had nade good
progress on reducing the overall backlog of permts, which
nostly involved mning, land, and water. He stressed that
Senator Hoffman was referring specifically to water
reservation applications and conferred that the departnent
had nade quite a bit of progress on the significant backl og
of those permts. He noted that he would let M. Menefee
address the way that the departnent had prioritized the
permts, but pointed out that nobst of the permts had been
focused on fish and gane and protecting habitat.

M. Menefee stated that the prioritization effort occurred
yearly and examned all of the applications, which were
primarily from ADFG addi tionally, there were many
applications fromthe federal governnent. He confirned that
there were 361 outstanding water reservation applications.
He reported t hat t he depart ment prioritized t he
applications by the potential risk of not having the
reservation, the quality of the data that was coll ected,
and several other aspects. He stated that DNR conducted the
prioritization with ADFG at an annual neeting in order to
ensure that the applications that needed the prioritization
for a water reservation were processed first. He stated
that the departnent prioritized about 20 water reservation
applications every year and observed that it had been
i ssui ng about 11 per year on average.

M. Menefee continued to address Senator Hof f man' s
guestions and related that the backlog would take sonme tine
to go through. He pointed out that a primary issue was that
it still took about 5 years of data gathering before a
water reservation could be adjudicated and stressed that
there was a time factor in the evaluation.

1: 56: 31 PM

Senator Hoffman inquired if the departnent was aware of a
lawsuit that was filed by the Chuitna Ctizens Coalition

He explained that the coalition had made an application to
DNR for a tenporary water permt, but were refused; the
coalition had taken the case to court. He pointed out that
the departnment had approved a tenporary permt, which was
for up to 305,000 gallons of water, for PacRim Coal in a
"mere" eight days. He discussed the Chuitna case and
pointed out that the Al aska Suprene Court had overturned
the departnent's decision, upholding that it had to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



consider the coalition's application for keeping water in
the streanms for fish.

Senat or Hof f man wondered why the departnment had not taken
action on the Chuitna Citizens Coalition's application and
had instead decided to fight the lawsuit. He further
inquired what the departnent's reasoning was for denying
the request to protect the stream for salnon. M. Menefee
replied that the primary issue in the |lawsuit had been over
when a water reservation had to be adjudicated versus
issuing tenporary water-use authorizations. He explained
that because a tenporary water-use authorization was a
conpletely different type of authorization than a water
reservation, was revocable, tenporary, nodifiable, as well
as certain regulations that explained how to address a
conflict, the departnment had felt that the appropriate
protections were in place. He offered that the reason the
coalition's reservation had not been dealt with yet was
sinply because it had not been prioritized at that point.

M. Menefee continued to address the points raised by
Senator Hoffman and reported that the tenporary water-use
aut hori zati on t hat t he depart ment had i ssued for
exploration was a need that had to be addressed at the
time; the departnment had felt that through the fish and
game aut hori zati ons and t he t enpor ary wat er - use
aut hori zati ons, there were enough restrictions and
considerations in place to protect fish habitat.

Senator Hoffrman noted that after the Al aska Suprenme Court
had overturned the DNR decision, the Chuitna G tizens
Coalition had nade the following statement (copy not on
file):

This decision makes it clear that the State of Al aska
is not in the business of protecting sal non habitat
and the countless famlies and jobs that salnon
support throughout the state. Instead of follow ng the
rules and protecting salnmon habitat, we  expect
Governor Parnell now to change the rules of the gane
or change the law conpletely so that Al askans are
prevented from protecting their sal non resources.

Senator Hoffrman requested the departnent to respond to the
above statenent. M. Menefee replied that there were
i naccuracies in the statenent and that it overlooked the
protections for salnon habitat in the current process. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



pointed out that the court decision did not require the
departnment to change any laws, but that it did specify that
there was "sone requirenment for us to | ook at" and consider
the water reservation; it did not require the departnent to
adj udi cate the reservation fully or finish it.

Senat or Hof fman inquired how the application of the Chuitna
Citizens Coalition would be viewed under the bill. M.
Menefee responded that the application would qualify as
being from a "person”™ and that the legislation's change
would require the coalition to find a different public
entity or political subdivision to transfer the application
to because it had not been adjudicated fully yet.

Senator Hoffrman queried if the bill would make it harder
for the coalition to get a permt. M. Mnefee believed
that it would not necessarily be harder because the
application information was all there and related that ADFG
worked with Native corporations and NGO throughout the
process. He opined that if all the data was gathered for an
application, it was likely that the coalition would be able
to get an agency to adopt the application and nove forward
with it.

2:02: 18 PM

Co- Chair Meyer noted that there would be nore questions for
the admnistration, but wanted to start the public
testinony because people were in queue to speak to the
bill. He apologized to the public for the delay and
explained that the commttee wanted to understand the bill
better.

MELANI E BROWN, SELF, expressed strong concerns about the
bill, particularly regarding the section that pertained to
water reservations. She shared that she was a conmerci al
fishing permt holder in Bristol Bay and that her famly
had been fishing in the bay for five generations. She
pointed out that her famly subsisted off the |ands and

waters of Bristol Bay. She stated that after listening to
comments of DNR, she becane especially concerned with how
the priorities were witten in the bill. She shared that

the chief of operations for DNR s Division of Mning, Land
& Water "mmde it very clear” where the priorities of DNR
were with the follow ng statenent:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



...if it is in the state's best, we can put another
priority over fish

Ms. Brown opined that the above statenment represented a
msinterpretation of the Alaska State Constitution, which
stated very clearly that the renewable resource of sal non
should be protected for Al askans. She urged the conmttee
to seriously scrutinize the section of the bill that
pertained to water reservations, as well as the other
sections of the |egislation.

Co- Chair Meyer observed that testinony should be limted to
two mnutes and explained that there were a |ot of people
signed up to testify on the bill.

PAUL FUHS, ALASKA SEA FARMS, spoke in support of HB 77. He
stated that Al aska Sea Farnms had been working with DNR to
rationalize | and- use regul ati ons for shel I fish

mariculture, and farm ng; over the course of this process,
it had becone clear that there needed to be a statutory
clarification regarding the renewal of shellfish |icenses.
He explained that the reason the clarification was
important was because of the types of species that
shellfish licenses covered. He expounded that when it took
three or four years to grow an oyster and seven to nine
years to grow a geoduct, a |essee that was reaching the end
its | ease would be hesitant plant nore stock if its |icense
renewal was uncertain. He explained that the bill clarified
the biology of the aninmals that Al aska Sea Farnms dealt
with. He pointed out that the currently, the issue caused
instability for people who wanted to invest in this
i ndustry.

2:06: 31 PM

LI NDSEY BLOOM  ALASKA | NDEPENDENT FI SHERVEN S MARKETI NG
ASSCCI ATI ON, expressed concerns about HB 77 and suggested
anending the bill. She pointed out that there were severa

measures in the legislation that took away the public's
ability to comment and testify during DNR s deci sion naking
process. She explained that the bill would create a general
permtting systemin which the comm ssioner would have the
discretion to issue general permts, wthout giving public
noti ce, which he/she determined were unlikely to result in
significant and irreparable harm She furthered that the
| egislation would renove the requirenent of public notice
for best-interest findings. She explained that the bil

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



also "liberalized" the nunber of tenporary water-use
permts and specified that they could be issued to a single
project nmultiple times and renewed w thout public notice.
She related that the legislation would change the
eligibility of a person to file an appeal or request
reconsideration with DNR and would change the laws
| anguage so that sonmeone had to be "substantially and

adversely inpacted or affected® in order to be a
participant in those processes. She related a hypothetical
exanple that illustrated her concerns regarding the

difficulty of fisherman proving that they were "directly
i npact ed" by upstream waster use.

Ms. Bloom pointed out that the zero fiscal note did not
provide additional funds for ADFG and DNR to work with
i ndi vi dual s, tribes, and organizations to apply for
instreamflow reservations. She was unsure how the
adm nistration could ensure that it would be able to deal
with the increased caseload of having to apply on behalf of
the Al askans w thout additional resources. She stated that
the primary issue for fisherman was that the bill took away
their rights to protect water, fisheries interests, to be
notified by DNR on actions that mght affect fisheries, and
to appeal decisions that could inpact fisheries. She urged
the commttee to take its tine with the bill and offered
t hat anendnents coul d address sone of the concerns.

2:11:14 PM

LEVI HOHL, ALASKA FLY ANGLERS I NC., KODI AK  (via
tel econference), spoke against HB 77. He related that clean
water and healthy salnon stocks were requisite for his
Al aska- based conpany to be successful. He shared that the
bill renmoved the right for citizens to petition for water
rights and denied Al askans a voice in nmanaging the state's
resour ces.

G NA FRI CCERO, SELF, KODI AK (via tel econference), expressed
strong concerns about HB 77 and stressed that it should not
be passed as it was witten. She discussed her famly's
| ong-standing history of fishing in Al aska and expressed
concerns that the legislation limted people's ability to
participate in a neaningful way. She felt that the bill
di m nished DNR s process, took away citizens' ability to
ensure protection for fish and gane, and renoved the right
of the public, tribes, or other entities to apply for water
reservations to mmintain sufficient flow for public

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



interests. She opined that the nbst concerning provisions
elimnated an individual's and organization's ability to
secure instream reservations of water, renoved a mandatory
notice and comment period for prelimnary best-interest
findi ngs, and limted who <could participate 1in the
adm ni strative process to challenge flawed deci sions.

Ms. Friccero pointed out that a corporation's goal was to
make profits, but remnded the commttee that the state's
goal should be to protect Alaska's environnent from being
ruined for the sake of corporate profits. She shared that
coastal comunities were "once again staring down the
barrels of big guns who are willing to ruin what we have in
order to get what they want, which is nore noney." She
offered that the state had a responsibility to comunities
to make decisions based on the viability of sustaining
resources and opined that there had never been a mne that
had not polluted the ground or water. She urged for the
consideration of fish, citizens, and aninmals and stressed
that the bill should not be passed as witten.

JODY MALUS, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), spoke
against HB 77. She stated that it underm ned the standards
for fish and wldlife and the ability of Alaskans to
participate in the nmanagenent of their resources. She
explained that the bill elimnated an individual's or an
organi zation's ability to request the reservation of water
in a stream river, or l|lake for the benefit of fish,
wildlife, recreation, transportation, as well as other
economc and cultural uses. She pointed out that the
| egislation al so renoved mandatory public notice and public
comment periods for prelimnary best-interest findings; it
also limted who could participate in challenging "flawed
deci sions"” that wundermned Alaska's hunting and fishing
resources. She urged the commttee to fix the bill and
uphold the rights of Alaskans to apply to DNR to reserve
water in rivers, creeks, and streans throughout the state,
including the waters of Bristol Bay. She related that it
was disturbing that the state governnent was taking an
increasingly lax attitude towards the actions of |[|arge
conpanies and their negative effects; neanwhile, sone
| egislators favored laws and rules that were becom ng nore
restrictive towards the rights of individuals.

HAROCLD BHLEM SELF, VALDEZ (via teleconference), testified

in opposition to HB 77. He opined that the bill appeared to
be "another industry power grab" and offered that there had

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



been too nmany bills of this type recently. He opined that
sonme of Alaska's elected and appointed officials felt only
responsible to their "cronies" or whoever appointed them
He stated that Alaskans needed nore opportunities to
preserve salnmon and the wunique way of life of Rural
Al askans. He shared that the wording in the bill raised the
possibility  of f ast tracking a project t hat had
irreversible and or irrenedi abl e consequences. He urged the
committee to fix the bill and concluded that people need
nore opportunities to represent thenselves and their point
of view rather than fewer opportunities to do so.

2:17:50 PM

DI ANN  DARNALL, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed opposition to HB 77. She related that the bill
was not in the best interest of the residents of the state,
particularly with respect to Rural Al askan's. She offered

that bill limted input and gave too nuch power to the
comm ssioner of DNR She discussed the use of the word
"may" in t he bill regar di ng t he conmi ssioner's

responsibilities. She pointed out that a notice in the
newspaper would not be an adequate notice for sonme "bush"
communities. She offered that the legislation had too nany
"maybes"” and did not have enough substance. She talked
about the requirenent of having to be in on the original
process in order to be eligible to appeal a decision by DNR
and pointed out that people mght not have been avail able
at the tinme of the original process for legitinate reasons.
She opined that the wording change within the |egislation
regardi ng who could appeal was unfair. She pointed out that
the bill needed nore work to protect resources for all
citizens of the state and concluded that all Al askans
shoul d have the right to appeal or give input.

SYLVI A PANZARELLA, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to HB 77 and opined that the
governor was continuing to take the rights of the public
away by elimnating their ability to speak against the
Pebble M ne and the Pebble Partnership. She expl ained that
the Pebble Mne's tailings dam would be |arge enough to
cover downtown Seattle and enconpass the Space Needle. She
furthered that the mne would require the nmonitoring of 1
billion gallons of acid tailings water in perpetuity and
pointed out that even nuclear waste had a half-life. She
appl auded people who were not "yes nen and yes wonen" to
the governor or the large corporations that were taking

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



over Alaska's oil, fish, and state. She warned against
taki ng away the people's right to speak.

TIM TROLL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, BRISTOL BAY HERI TAGE LAND
TRUST, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed concerns
about HB 77 and encouraged the commttee to take its tine
with the legislation. He pointed out that over the last 5
years, he had help raise over $1 nillion to help fund
instreamflow reservations for fish in his capacity as
executive director. He offered that it was ironic that nuch
of the trust's efforts were targeted for retroactive
cancellation by the State of Al aska, which had encouraged
them to do the work in the first place. He urged the
committee not to rush to approve the bill, but to pause and
make an effort to understand Al askan |aw. He discussed the
benefit of private instreamflow reservations to the state.
He explained that the land trust's work was a perfect
exanple of a public-private partnership. He acknow edged
that ADFG followed nost of the instream flow reservations,
but could not be everywhere; the trust assisted in this
effort by raising nore than $1 nillion and collecting the
necessary hydrologic data that ADFG did not have the
resources to collect. He pointed out that the trust did
this at no cost to ADFG

M. Troll opined that if it was the policy of Al aska not to
sacrifice one resource for another, then private instream
flow reservations could help acconplish that. He wondered
how it could be determ ned whether fish and mning could
coexist in a particular place and explained that fish and
m nes both needed water. He expounded that if the m ne took
too much water, the fish died. He pondered how the anount
of water that fish needed to live was determned and
explained that instreamflow reservations required 5 years
of data collection that would be used to cal cul ate how nmuch
water nust be left in a lake or river to support fish. He
furthered that an instreamflow reservation |let DNR and the
mning permt applicant design a mne according to how nuch
water would be available. He pointed out that a water
reservation would not necessarily stop the nmne and
expl ained that a mning conpany could ask DNR to vacate or
nodi fy the water reservation; if a greater public interest
favored the mne, fish could be sacrificed, or if a greater
public interest favored fish, the conpany would make ot her
pl ans. He offered that all a private instreamflow
reservation really did was provide private applicants with
standing in the adjudication process to ensure that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



public interest in fish was represented, t hat t he
commi ssi oner was considering the best available data, and
that if there was choice between fish and another resource,
it would not be nade arbitrarily.

2:23: 57 PM

BRI AN  KRAFT, VI CE- PRESI DENT, KATNAI SERVI CE PROVI DERS

ANCHORACGE (via tel econference), testified that HB 77 needed
changes and opined that it was an opportunity for the
governor to push forward the agenda of the mning industry.

He offered that the bill was not a streamining of the
process to help get permts through quicker and opined that
t he backlog was due to a lack of personnel. He discussed a
Fraser Institute annual survey of mning conpanies that was
sent to over 4100 exploration, developnent, and other
mning related conpanies worldwi de. He reported that the
survey reflected responses from 742 of those conpani es and
that the data was sufficient to evaluate 96 jurisdictions.

He explained that the survey's responses were tallied and
that it ranked provinces, states, and countries according
to the extent that the public policy factors encouraged or
di scouraged investnent; Alaska was in the top 15 worl dw de
in terns of being favorable through its permtting system
and other factors as being open for business. He related
that the bill took away the public's opportunity to
participate at a level where it could give input and have
the state consider the public's best interest. He stated
that it was essential for business owners who depended on
water quality to have the opportunity to be notified and
coment on potential water uses that could have an effect
on their industries. He concluded that the committee should
take a close look at HB 77 and be very cautious before
passing it.

SAM SNYDER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), expressed
opposition to HB 77. He related that he was raised in the
desert where water and fish habitat were scarce and stated
that he was an avid sportsnman who had been involved in the
community and industry nationwi de. He pointed out that he
al so had a doctorate in environnmental studies with a focus
on water and fisheries related issues. He observed that
Al aska was defined, in large part, by its world class
fisheries. He furthered that anglers from around the world
came to Alaska and envied the state of its fisheries. He
related that Al aska's residents took pride in not only the
robust nature of the state's fisheries, but also in their

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



ability to have a voice in the nmanagenent process. He
offered that while other salnon fisheries had been
declining around the world, Alaska renmained "above them
all,"” in part, because of the existing protections and the
ability of the community to engage in the process. He
pointed out that the legislation not only put healthy
salnon runs and fisheries at risk, but also renoved the
ability of Alaskan citizens, who were stakeholders that
were dependent on healthy rivers and habitat, to have a

voice in the nmanagenent and conservation of those
resour ces.
M. Snyder opined that the bill represented an undercutting

of the denocratic ideals of the US. and a point of pride
for Al askans, whose constitution mandated the conservation
of fish and habitat for the best interest of state and its
citizens. He pointed out that Section 40 of the bil
removed the ability of individuals and groups to apply for
an instreamflow reservations, which wuld be a blow to
interests that depended on fisheries; noreover, it put the
protection of fish and habitat at risk. He observed that
DNR had stated that very norning that if it was in the
state's best interest, other priorities could be placed
over fish. He wondered how the state's best interest was
defined if it was not for its citizens and issues Ilike
fisheries. He furthered that Section 40 also gave the
comm ssioner of DNR "unwarranted" authority to grant
tenporary water-use permts at his/her own discretion as
often as needed, as well as general use pernmts wthout
necessarily having public input; additionally it reduced
the public's access to the adm nistrative appeal processes
by changing the standard to "substantially and adversely
affected.” He was unsure how substantially and adversely
affected" would be defined and defended. He wondered why
the system needed streanmlining if it was already robust.

2:29:52 PM

MELI SSA HEUER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed strong concerns with HB 77, especially regarding
the sections of the bill that Iimted the rights of
i ndividuals. She offered that Sections 4, 40, and 41
removed the rights of individuals and organizations to
apply for and appeal water rights. She pointed out that it
was a constitutional right of Alaskans to be able to
protect their fishing resources and opined that the bill
stripped the state's citizens of their ability to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



participate in the process, which was unacceptable. She
offered that healthy water ways were an inval uable resource
to a nunber of individuals and industries in Alaska. She
did not support any |anguage that renoved the individua
rights of Alaskans and placed those rights in the hands of
the comm ssioner of DNR with little or no say from |ocal
residents. She pointed out that Al aska ranked in the top
third of states in terns of its relaxed policies for mning
devel opnent. She opined that Alaska's permtting process
needed nore protection for the public and not |ess. She
requested that the bill be held in conmttee until its
long-term inplications on the permtting system and the
future health of Al aska's waterways coul d be determ ned.

KATHERI NE HUBER, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
voi ced concern regarding HB 77. She related that multiple
portions of the bill would limt the rights of Al askans to
be involved in resource-use decisions, including those that
i npacted sal non resources and fisheries. She offered that
the public needed nore opportunities to be involved in
decisions related to the state's resources. She pointed out
that Section 40 of the bill elimnated individuals' and
organi zations' ability to request that water remain in a
stream river, or lake for the benefit of fish, wldlife,
recreations, and/or transportation. She furthered that
Section 42 of the bill gave the comm ssioner of DNR the
ability to issue tenporary water-use authorizations wthout
public comments. She opined that the legislation' s proposed
changes would |l essen the public's ability to take part in
managing its resources. She pointed out that she relied on
the state's fish and gane resources, particularly on sal non
fisheries and explained that she lived in Al aska because of
the opportunities provided by the land and its abundant
nat ural resources.

Ms. Huber stated that the Alaska State Constitution and
ADFG regul ations nmandated the sustainability of Al aska's
resources. She asked the commttee to consider Alaska's
Policy for the Mnagenent of Sustainable Sal non Fisheries,
which stated that "the Board of Fisheries and ADFG
recogni zes that Alaska's salnon fisheries are healthy and
sustainable l|argely because of abundant pristine habitat
and the application of sound, precautionary conservation-
managenent practices.”™ She opined that the regulations
clearly stated that public support and involvenent for
sust ai ned use and protection of salnon resources should be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



sought and encouraged. She urged the comrttee to fix the
bill to include nore public oversight and invol venent.

Co-Chair Kelly addressed comments of testifiers that were
made in reference to statenments by DNR during the previous
commttee neeting. He explained that testifiers had clainmed
that DNR had said that the state would prioritize sonething
over fish if it was in the state's best interest. He
pointed out that the discussion had been under the context
of whether the state would prioritize eight fish over a
project that mght be in the best interest of the State of
Al aska. He opined that the headlines would read that DNR
woul d prioritize projects over fish, but offered that this
was not true.

2:35: 01 PM

DOROTHY B. LARSON, TRIBAL ADM NI STRATOR, CURYUNG TRI BAL
COUNCI L, DILLINGHAM (via teleconference), testified against
HB 77. She expressed the council's desire to be able to
pr ot ect its wldlife and renewabl e resour ces for
subsi stence, commercial, and residential use, pointed out
that it took that responsibility very seriously. She stated
that habitat protection was a neans for people to protect
their resources and opined that it would be a fatal flaw to
elimnate tribal governnents' right and authority to apply
for water reservations. She explained that the tribe had
becone increasingly critical for all kinds of governnent
services and that it could continue to assist the state in
growi ng, prospering, and serving the public uses of
Al aska's resources. Additional, the council was concerned

that the bill seened to take away tribal governnents

ability to work with the state governnment. She offered that
tribal governments had already been limted in their
ability to work wth the governnent, but that the

| egislation conpletely stripped that ability away from the
public. She expressed concerns with the "government running
amuck," especially when it related to DNR and the
protection of the state's resources.

BILLY MAINES, SELF, DILLINGHAM (via tel econference), urged
opposition to HB 77 and offered that It was not
constitutional. He discussed Article 8 of the Al aska State
Constitution and opined that the |egislation went against
that article. He stated that the |egislation also took away
his right as an Alaskan citizen to petition for water

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



rights and that it would not even allow himto comrent on
the issues that were being proposed in the bill.

DAN DUNAVAY, SELF, DILLINGHAM (via teleconference), spoke
against HB 77. He offered that one of the great
"underpinnings" of formng the State of Alaska was the
demand for citizen participation in the nmanagenent of their
resources and saw the bill as disenfranchising citizens
from the process. He discussed previous coments that
stated that Alaska's permtting was different from other
states and wondered when being different had ever bothered
Al aska. He supported the comments of Tim Troll. He recalled
a situation where, through working as an ADFG bi ol ogi st,
water reservations had needed to be worked out, but that
the state had been unable to do so in this particul ar case.
He explained that the Nature Conservancy had stepped in to
help with the situation, the water reservations were worked
out, and the state had finished the process; he offered
this was an excellent exanple of cooperation that had saved
the state a lot of noney. He acknow edged that there were
sonme parts of the legislation that cleaned up the |anguage
and made it nore specific, which he supported. He added
that he did not want to see a reduction in public
participation or information and offered that Senator
Hof f man was correct that requiring a local group to find a
government agency to work with was another obstacle to a
group being able to participate.

2:41:17 PM

TOM  TI LDEN, SELF, D LLINGHAM (via teleconference),
testified against HB 77 and believed that it sacrificed
salmon to other interests in the state. He remarked on the
previous comments of DNR that other resources mght be
prioritized over salnmon for the good of the state and
offered that it was a "bad comment"”; furthernore, the sane
statenent had probably been nade in California, Oegon, and
Washi ngt on. He discussed how California, Oregon, and
Washington had prioritized tinber, m ni ng, and hydro
interests over salnon and shared that there were not many
fish left in those states. He pointed out that there were
still significant fish populations in Al aska that needed to
be protected and offered that it was in the best interest
of the state to protect the renewable resources that it
had. He observed that if you |ooked at the history of the
Al aska before the oil, gas, and mning conpanies had
arrived, it had been salnon that supported the state. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



opined that it would be salnon that again supported the
state after all the oil and mning was done because
tourists would cone to the state to catch salnon and see
Al aska Natives |live a subsistence lifestyle. He urged the
protection of salnon and hoped that the governor would not
sacrifice one resource over another.

M KE BYERLY, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference), voiced
strong opposition to HB 77. He opined that the only reason
the bill existed was the Pebble Mne and other simlar
projects. He offered that you did not "throw the baby out
with the bathwater” if you did not like the way a policy
worked. He opined that DNR routinely processed water-use
application for mning, oil, and gas developnent, but
rarely processed the instreamflow applications that were
needed to keep water in the rivers for fish. He shared that
sal non needed enough water to reach their spawning grounds
upstream He explained that often spawning grounds were
nothing nore than a trickle of water, but that in
aggregate, those trickles over an entire watershed could
produce a very large run. He relayed that the state was
founded on fish and that subsistence fishing continued to
play a large role in the fabric of Al aska. He pointed out
that Alaska's comrercial fishing industry was alive and
thriving due to its habitat; nobst of the state's streans
remai ned un-damred and its watersheds were nostly intact.

M. Byerly offered that the instreamflow reservations were
essential to ensure that the state |left enough water in its
streans for the basic needs of fish. He asserted that the
governor had stated nore than once that he would never
trade one resource for another. He stated that if the water
was left in the rivers and the watersheds kept intact,
sal non would continue to return and offered that it was the
"best" and "cheapest" investnent the state could nake. He
warned against trading fish and the jobs that were
associated with them for a one-tinme devel opnment. He urged
the commttee not to pass the bill in any form

2:46:14 PM

JESSI CA TENHOFF, SELF, HOVER (via tel econference), spoke in
opposition to HB 77 and noted that she was agai nst anything
that dimnished the ability of citizens to give input on
issues that affected their sustainable life. She relayed
that the legislation altered her ability to affect change
and pointed out that a representative governnent's first

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



responsibility should be to protect the right of citizen
participation. She opined that if $10 billion could be
"given away" to oil conpanies for tax incentives, then
sonmeone el se was "owni ng" the government. She felt that her
voi ce was being continually dimnished and asserted that it
was the legislature's responsibility to strengthen the
citizens' ability to guide their own future.

LEE TENHOFF, SELF, HOMER (via teleconference), expressed
opposition to HB 77 and related that the bill gave too nuch

power to an elected official. He discussed the bill's use
of the wording "best interest of the state" and opined that
the term was getting away from the "public interest.” He

expressed a desire to have his voice heard.

2:48: 49 PM

HAL SHEPHERD, CENTER FOR WATER ADVOCACY, CITY OF ELIM AND
NORTON BAY | NTER-TRIBAL WATERSHED COUNCI L, KENAI (via
tel econference), spoke in opposition to HB 77. He stated
that the Norton Bay Native communities and tribal
governnent were concerned that tribal governments woul d be
excluded from the processes of protecting and nanaging
instreamflow reservations as far the application process
was concerned. He pointed out that the bill left out tribal
gover nment s, many of whi ch had al r eady subm tted
applications for instream flows; others were currently in
the process of collecting the five years of data required
to apply for an instream flow reservation. He pointed out
t hat pending applications of these tribal governnments woul d
be "dropped" by the bill. He relayed that the bill would
also elimnate inportant tribal environnmental know edge,
contenporary data, and a tribe's experience with area. He
shared that he was currently working with tribes to coll ect
data for an instreamflow reservation. He requested the
commttee to oppose the bill inits entirety.

M CHELE MARTI N, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to HB 77 in its current form She thought that
the bill, as witten, would represent a fast track for
corporations that were l|argely based out-of-state, which
wanted to use the resources for their own financial gain.
She believed that the noney these corporations earned woul d
not go back into the state's econony. She related that the
state needed water in its streans for fish and that it was
in the state constitution to do so. She discussed the
i nportance of the fish to the local econony, way of life,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



and future sustainability of the Al aska. She pointed out
that other states were spending |arge anounts of noney to
rebuild fisheries that had been destroyed by |oss of
habi tat and observed that Al aska could learn from the past
and not neke the sane mstake. She stated that it took a
significant anount of noney and resources to rebuild
fisheries after they had been hanpered by habitat
degradation and offered that the runs alnost never cane
back fully after that had occurred.

2:54: 19 PM

NIl CK CASSARA, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke
against HB 77. He discussed his 30 years of work history
protecting and enhancing the fish and wildlife popul ations
with ADFG He recalled that Conm ssioner Sullivan had
indicated that no other state currently allowed individuals
to file for water rights and offered that Al aska's |aws and
regul ations were better than those of the other states. He
wondered if there was any state in the country that soneone
woul d rather be working in than Al aska. He relayed that the
rest of the country was trying undo damage that had been
done to their watersheds and fisheries, and queried why
Al aska would want to be nore like the other 49 states. He
guoted from Article 8, Section 3 of the Al aska State
Constitution as foll ows:

Wherever occurring in their natural state, fish,
wildlife, and waters are reserved to the people for
comon use

M. Cassara opined that the state's constitution clearly
set out the rights of the people and conmunicated those
rights to water. He wurged the commttee not to nmake
shortsighted changes to the state's regul ati ons.

2:56:11 PM

JIM COLVER, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference), stated that
HB 77 needed to be anmended. He pointed out that DNR was the
platting authority for wunorganized areas in Al aska and
stated that Section 28 of the bill streamined the process
for the vacation of property lines; he offered that this
section could use a lot nore streamining. He relayed that
his firmwas working on a plat for a school and village in
Western Alaska and that DNR was the platting authority. He
explained that the plat would vacate sonme property lines

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



and a portion of several streets to accommobdate a village
office and a school septic system He pointed out that the
petitioners owned nost of the surrounding land, the plat
had been submitted for 2 nonths, and that after repeated
requests, there was still no confirned schedule for a
hearing and decision on the right-of-way vacation. He
pointed it was expected that it would be another 20 weeks
before a decision was finalized, which may be too late to
conduct field work in the upcom ng sumer.

M. Colver shared that in nunicipalities, the vacation of a
street or easenent was a straightforward process that did
not exceed 75 days for approval, including a 45-day period
until the plat is heard and 30-period that was designated
in statute. He offered that Section 28 needed to be anended
to streamine the process of vacating right-of-ways and
easenents to be simlar to the process that nunicipalities
used. He pointed out that the problem was that DNR handl ed
street vacations simlarly to section-line vacations, which
took a lot nore agency coordination. He offered that he
could help on an anmendnent to the bill and that he had j ust
re-witten the Mat-Su Borough platting code. He concluded
that the section of law that Section 28 dealt with could be
addressed in the bill.

DAVE ATCHESQN, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified
that HB 77 needed to be abandoned or rewitten. He pointed
out that Alaska was proud of its commercial and sport
fishing, but warned that the sane thing that happened in
the Lower-48 could happen in Alaska. He opined that in his
30 years of living in the state, he had seen the begi nnings
of what happened in the Lower-48 in Al aska. He opined that
HB 77 was one factor that was |eading Al aska towards the
direction of the Lower-48s fisheries. He stated that the
bill elimnated the ability for entities to obtain
instreamflow reservations, whi ch al | owed for t he
sustainability of a wvariety of activities, while also
protecting fish and wldlife habitat. He noted that
removing the mandatory notice and comment period for best
interest filings was concerning and offered that it was not
good policy or governnment to exclude the public from this
process. He opined that the reason the state had great
fisheries was their inaccessibility, and expressed that the
state needed to be careful with its fisheries.

NELLI W LLI AVS, TROUT UNLI M TED, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke against HB 77. She related that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



| egi sl ati on underm ned sound nanagenent, salnon and trout
habitat, and inhibited or renmoved the public's ability to
hel p shape | and-managenent decisions. She pointed out that
Trout Unlimted had 15 staff and over 800 nenbers in Al aska
and that it worked to protect fish or fix rivers where
peopl e fished. She offered that the legislation would harm
the fish and rivers that Trout Unlimted s nenbers depended
on to run businesses, for recreation, and to put food on
the table. She pointed out that the bill would elimnate
the ability of an individual Al askan, a business, or an
organi zation to keep water in a stream for fish habitat
econonmi ¢ purposes, and cultural reasons. She opined that
the legislation would put every day Alaskans at a
di sadvantage to industry.

Ms. WIllians shared that Trout Unlimted had spent tens of
t housands of dollars over the past several vyears to
establish instreamflow reservations and that those efforts

would be nulled by the bill. She offered that Al aska's
permtting process already hel ped pave the way for industry
in Alaska and that the bill took steps to nake the process

even easier at the expense of the public. She reported that
the Fraser Institute ranked Alaska in the top third anong
states and countries with the nost relaxed policies for
m ner al devel opnent . She asserted that sever al DNR
enpl oyees had publicly stated that the Alaska permtting
system was "basically a cake wal k"™ and was set up to say
yes to resource devel opnent projects. She concluded that
the Ilegislation would cut out public involvenent in
decisions that affected public resource managenent and
woul d make it harder for Al askans to voice concerns about a
project in a meaningful way.

3:04: 48 PM

RACHAEL PETRO, PRESI DENT & CEO  ALASKA STATE CHAMBER OF
COMVERCE, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support
of provisions within HB 77. She related that the chanber's
primary mssion was to advocate for polices that inproved
Al aska's business climte and pointed out that efficient,
predi ctable, and commobn sense regulations and permtting
processes were integral to creating an environnent in which
busi nesses could succeed. She stated that the chanber's
menbers had expressed strong support for Al aska's policies
and regulations that guided the developnent of Alaska's
natural resources while still protecting the environment.
She pointed out that the chanmber had also advocated for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



streanlining the regulations and policies in which
bureaucratic and busi ness efficiencies could be gained. She
referenced the Fraser Institute's study that had been
addr essed by earlier testifiers and rel at ed t hat
internationally, Alaska ranked just below Kazakhstan and
J ust above Col umbi a regar di ng uncertainty W th
environnmental regulations; furthernore, wth regard to
regul ation duplication and inconsistencies, Al aska ranked
bel ow Honduras and above Niger. She concluded that the bill
was a comon sense piece of legislation that should receive
broad support.

3:07:12 PM

KATHERI NE CARSCALLEN, SELF, DI LLI NGHAM (via
tel econference), testified against HB 77. She stated that
Section 40 of the bill took away the ability of a person

tribal government, <city, or other group to apply for
instreamflow reservations. She pointed out that Al aska had
sust ai nabl e fisheries and managenent that were the envy of
the rest of the country, which were driven by public
participation and a precautionary approach to nanagenent.
She stated that the regulations that applied to upstream of
the fisheries were |acking and pointed out that there were
al ready no automatic instreamflow requirenents for sal non.
She opined that the burden of protecting fish was already
on the public and that renmoving the right of individuals to
apply for instreamflow reservations was a nove in the
wong direction. She pointed out that it was easy to see
how trading fish "here or there" or a few thousand acres of
wet | ands for the greater good of Alaska could be justified
by the state, which was a reality Bristol Bay was being
faced with. She was not willing to give up her persona
rights to keep tabs on water applications, apply for
instream fl owreservations, and contest decisions by DNR

Ms. Carscallen concluded that as Bristol Bay was being
faced with new developnent prospects, the people were
seeing their priorities diverge fromthose of the state and
of fered that Al askans needed to keep their ability to | ook
out for the best long-term interests of their region and
state.

DW GHT  GURLEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified against HB 77. He offered that part of the intent
of the bill was to exclude an individual's application for
instreamflow reservations. He thought that the state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



needed nore participation from individuals who had vested
interests that were snaller than the corporate interests
He pointed out that Alaska's pristine habitat was a
treasure that relied on abundant, clean water and offered
that building a fishery that would be as sustainable as the
ones that Alaska currently had would be a conplex and
gar gant uan proj ect .

3:11:16 PM

KRI STIN  CARPENTER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, COPPER RI VER
WATERSHED PRQJIECT, CORDOVA (via teleconference), testified
against HB 77 in its current form She pointed out that the
Copper River region supported commercial, subsistence, and
sport sal non fishing econoni es and di scussed her

experiences on the Cordova City Council. She |oved that
Al aska had a history of keeping decision naking accessible
to citizens. She felt the bill had the potential to injure
fisheries resour ces by severely [imting public

participation and pointed out that the fishing sector of
the state's econony enployed nore people than any other
sector; it did not generate nore revenue, but enployed nore
people. She related that the Copper River Watershed Project
had submtted an application to nmaintain enough water in
Eyak Lake for salmon and pointed out that the |[ake
generated over $1 mllion per year in Sockeye and Coho ex-
vessel seafood sales. She offered that the bill was
intended to benefit certain projects, but that it would
have significant potential for unintended consequences. She
concl uded that the bill needed nore anal ysis.

JOY HUNTI NGTON, TANANA CHI EFS CONFERENCE, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), supported adding an amendnent to Section
40 of HB 77 that included federally recognized tribes
and/or tribal organizations. She appreciated Comr ssioner
Sullivan's efforts to work wth tribal entities and
indicated that he was very responsive to correspondences.
She pointed out that water reservations were not the only
way to protect fish and gane, but that the matter involved
| ocal governnent inclusion. She relayed that in over half
of Alaska's comunities, the tribe was the only Iocal
government and public agency; they provided healthcare,
public safety, famly services, and helped with certain
j udi ci al aspects. She stated that excluding tribal
governnments left many comunities out of the process and
offered that tribes often had nore capacity than cities.
She relayed that tribes were not inherently anti-

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



devel opnment and opined that allowing tribes to submt
applications did not represent an anti-devel opment effort.
She concluded that the state should recognize tribes as
| ocal governing bodies and trust the |local process;
furthernore, including federally recognized tribes and/or
tribal organizations was | ogical

3:17: 04 PM

ERI C  NASSUK, NATIVE VILLAGE OF KOYUK, KOYUK (via
tel econference), expressed opposition to HB 77 and rel ated
that it concerned the village. He relayed the inportance of
subsi stence and conmercial fishing around Koyuk and offered
that the bill would negatively affect the village's efforts
to continue its lifestyle. He stated that Koyuk was opposed
to the bill because instream water-right issues occurred at
the headwaters where the fish spawned. He concluded that
the village lived a lifestyle that reaped benefits for
future generations and that the legislation did not reflect
t hat .

RONALD BARNES, | NDI GENOUS PEOPLES & NATIONS COQOALITION
DI LLI NGHAM (via tel econference), testified in opposition to
HB 77. He discussed a recent United Nations reports by the
Speci al Rapporteur on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, who
had recently visited Alaska. He stated that the special
rapporteur had asserted in his report that the indigenous
peopl es of Alaska had not consented to the creation of a
federal state, which was a violation of an indigenous
people's right to self-determnation. He relayed that the
report had also stated that the Alaska Native dains
Settlenment Act was in question, which was supported by an
earlier report by Erica-lrene Daes. He offered that the
1867 Treaty of Cession did not provide ownership or
jurisdiction to the Unites States of America. He opined
that HB 77 and the history of law and legislation that
created the State of Alaska were in violation of the
constitution of the United States. He pointed out that,

based on t he constitution, adopti ng or renderi ng
| egislation that libeled those who held title and
jurisdiction <could result in liabilities for public

officials or enforcers of the violations in the form of
physi cal and econoni ¢ damages.

RONNI BURNETT, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),

testified in opposition to HB 77. He offered that the bil
stripped Al askans of the rights for clean water and healthy

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 26 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



fisheries. He related that the Chuitna Ctizens Coalition's
intention in filing for the instreamflow reservation for
Mddle Creek was to ensure that those fish always had
enough water to grow and return to the ocean. He opined
that PacRim Coal had no reason to believe that the fish
were needed and related the inportance of the Chuit River
watershed to a nearby village. He believed that people
shoul d have the right to be heard regarding situations that
concerned thousands of people and offered that the bill
shoul d be scrapped. He opined that the governor was using
the legislation to fight against the Chuitna Citizens
Coalition's instreamfl ow reservation.

3:23:49 PM

NIl KOS PASTOS, SELF, SEWARD (via tel econference), expressed
opposition to HB 77 and offered that it violated humans'
right to water; specifically, it took away the right to
public participation by individuals, comunities, and
tribal governnments or tribal organizations. He offered that
the legislation was not a good way to create a healthy
denocracy and related that water was a resource that nust
be shared by everyone. He opined that I|imting public
participation and review, as well as alienating half of the
communities in Alaska was not a good way to share water. He
pointed out that renoving instreamflow reservations nmade
it much easier for developnent projects to be streamined
or hurried, and opined that federally recognized tribal
governments had every right reserved under f eder al
statutes, especially regarding the Clean Water Act. He
stated that it was a problemthat the state did not want to
share water with half of the communities in Al aska. He
pointed out that federal agencies had duties to tribal
communities to uphold water quality and quantity standards.
He opined that the bill was bad | egislation.

ANDY  ROCERS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the HB 77. He was pleased that DNR
was |looking for efficiencies and ways to inprove and
streaniine its processes. He agreed with the comments of an
earlier testify that had discussed the challenges in the
platting process and stated that there was a |ot
frustration and delay associated with sonme of the current
regul ati ons.

JAVES SULLI VAN, SOUTHEAST ALASKA CONSERVATION COUNCI L,
expressed the council's opposition to HB 77. He offered

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 27 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



that the legislation had been presented as a sinple

streamining bill that was intended to help Alaska with its
permtting problens, but opined that this was not the case.
He offered that the bill presented a very inportant policy

guestion to the legislature regarding value. He asserted
that the issue was whether the legislature valued the
rights and lifestyles of individuals within Al aska and
whet her those who l|ived a subsistence lifestyle had the
right to apply for an instreamflow reservation. He
acknow edged the value of water uses for the activities of
different corporations, but asked the legislature to take
time to recognize the unique value that Alaskan Native
organi zations and tribes had. He opined that that Al askan
Native organi zations and tribes should have the opportunity
to apply for instreamflow reservations to enable them to
live their lifestyle.

3:30:16 PM

JENNI FER HANLON, ENVI RONMENTAL SPECI ALI ST, CENTRAL COUNCI L
OF THE TLING T & HAIDA IND AN TRIBES OF ALASKA, expressed
the council's opposition to HB 77. She explained that the
bill renmoved that council's ability to apply for instream
flow reservations and would affect its traditional
subsi stence econom es. She stated that many tribal citizens
depended on water rights for commercial fisheries and other
industries that relied on sufficient amounts of water. She
pointed out that the legislation would also Iimt triba
governments' ability to participate in the decision naking
process regarding issues that affected the habitat of
traditional hunting and fishing resources. She reported
that DNR had asserted that tribes would be able to solicit
different agencies to apply for water rights on their
behal f, but expressed concerns regarding assurances that
state agencies would properly represent tribal interests.
She felt that although there were currently no instream
flow reservations for tribes in Southeast Alaska, the
| egi slation would affect the council's ability to apply for
water rights in the future. She expressed concerns that the
bill would nmake it nore difficult for tribes to be notified
and comment on devel opnent projects. She stated that
Tlingit and Haida traditional values included environnental
stewardship and consideration for how actions affected
future generations. She continued that given DNR s renova
of "conservation in future generations” from its mssion
statenment, there were concerns whether its threshold of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 28 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



significant and irreparable harm would be simlar to that
of the tribes.

RI CK HALFORD, SELF, testified against HB 77. He pointed out
that the state's constitution was clear that, other than
public water supply, the first priority of water use was
for fish and wildlife, and opined that DNR had been naking
the issue seem smaller than it really was. He relayed that
Al aska had 23 years of history of private instreamflow
applications and that mllions of dollars had been spent
based on those applications, nost of which were done wth
the help of ADFG and DNR He pointed out that the system
had been wor ki ng wi t hout probl ens and t hat t he
adm ni stration had not adjudicated any of "those." He added
that the admnistration had the ability to say no and
stated that tribal groups would go to the federa

government for help if they were unable to participate in
the process. He pointed out that the federal governnent

woul d still be able to apply for instreamflow reservations
and that involving them would bring back other argunents
that were unnecessary to get into. He observed that

al though the water right unperfected was not a property
right, the priority of its application date my be a
property right under new case law, there was a priority for
adj udi cation based on the date of the application. He
thought that a retroactive repeal after hundreds of
t housands of dollars had been spent would end up in court
and offered that the repeal was not necessary.

M. Halford related an additional concern that the bil
changed the standard for standing, appeal, and notification
wi thin the agency; however, the standard was still the sane
under the court system He expounded that an i ndividual
could not appeal to DNR for a decision that they felt
aggrieved by, but that the standard in the court system was
still "aggrieved"; therefore, an individual could go
directly through the court system instead of DNR He
expl ai ned that the court system wanted soneone to use the
adm ni strative process first in order to build a record and
that the bill only passed a convenience to DNR at the
expense of the court system and court cases; furthernore
if the rule was being changed, there would need to a court
rule change. He added that the ultinate rule would be the
court's determnation and opined that the bill would cause
problems with the court system and the state system in
general .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 29 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



M. Halford stated that the notice provision for the
di sposal of land or an interest in land, in which water was
included, was a clear constitutional requirenent that did
not depend on statute. He opined that trying to avoid that
part of the constitution was a fallacy. He offered that
some of bill's changes to land disposal and ot her
clarifications nade the system better, but that they were
conbined with aspects that changed bal ances that had taken
a long tinme to fornmulate and were not a problem He offered
that the bill should be sent to a subcommittee for further
study and opined that there was no energency. He stated
that the |land disposal, auction, and survey questions were
much sinpler and could be worked out; however, |[egal
questions should not be worked out in a bill that had never
been in either the House or Senate Judiciary Committee and
whi ch had been given to the committee in the last ten days
of sessi on.

3:39:27 PM

VERNER W LSON, SELF, DI LLI NGHAM (via teleconference),
expressed disappointnent that there was only a one-day
notice on public testinony for HB 77 and stated that the
bill should not be passed. He believed that DNR did not
provide the public proper notice regarding public hearings
on the Bristol Bay Area Plan and opined that it was a shane
that he trusted interests in the Lower-48 to listen to his
concerns nore than fellow Al askans. He stated that the
| egislation should not be rushed and that it invited
f eder al intervention on inportant Al askan issues. He
offered that the bill was not needed and believed that it
was unconstitutional. He urged the commttee not to shut
the public out of inportant issues and stated that people
should have the right to speak up and petition the
government to protect the great salnon fishery in Bristol
Bay and the clean water thousands of peopl e depended on.

KIM W LLI AVS, SELF, D LLINGHAM (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to HB 77 in its current form and
suggested making amendnents to the bill. She discussed
earlier comrents by the adm nistration that nentioned a bi-
partisan effort across the country to serve the public
better, but offered that the legislation affected that
effort. She recalled serving on the Curyung Tribal Counci

and pointed out that the legislation would inpact her
tribe. She stated that DNR and ADFG had not sat down wth
her tribe in a bi-partisan effort to address what the tribe

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 30 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



saw as critical to maintain water in streanms for sal non,
nor did they consult the tribe regarding the drafting of
the bill. She relayed that pending Curyung Tribal Council
applications would be inpacted by Section 40 of the
| egi sl ation and pointed out that the council had filed for
instreamflow reservations on the Nushagak River very
selectively; the council had |ooked at the Koktuli,
Mul chatna, and Stuyahok rivers because they had King
Sal non. She offered that the |egislation went against the
common sense of people in Rural Alaska and stated that it
inpacted the tenporary-use water permts that extractive
i ndustries needed for mneral developnent in Bristol Bay.
She added that the streans that had water, salnon, and
wildlife would be inpacted because the bill would take away
her tribe's ability to file for instreamflow reservations.
She requested the conmttee to add an anendnent that
allowed tribal governnments to hold standing so that they
could protect salnobn and subsistence resources into the
future.

3:43:42 PM

JENNI FER HARRI SON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, CHI CKALOON NATI VE
VI LLAGE, DI LLINGHAM (via tel econference), opposed HB 77 in
its current form but supported adding anendnents that
added federally recognized tribes or tribal entities to the
list of government agencies. She requested the comrittee to
take action to protect salnon habitat and not destroy
exi sting salnmon protections. She relayed that the village
had relied on plentiful Mose Creek salnon for centuries,
but stated that since the 1920s, coal mnes, railroads, and
i ndustrialization had created several waterfalls, including
one inpassible fall that limted salnon to the |ower three
mles of the creek. She reported that between 2005 and
2007, the village had been working with US. Fish and
Wldlife Service, the National Atnospheric and GCceanic
Adm ni stration (NOAA), and ConocoPhillips to realign Mose
creek to its historic, pre-mning |location by bypassing the
i npassible waterfall. She relayed that imediately salnon
had been photographed sw nming upstream to habitats that
had been unutilized for many generati ons.

Ms. Harrison stated that in 2007, Chickaloon Village had
hired the U S. Geological Survey (USGS) to gauge Moose
Creek's stream flow in an effort to collect the necessary
data for an application. She stated that wth funding
support from USGS, the U S. Fish and WIldlife Service,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 31 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



ADFG and the Bureau of Indian Affairs the gauge data had
been coll ected. She continued that in 2009, the village had
submtted an application for an instreamflow reservation
to ensure that there would be enough water for sal nmon. She
reported that the village and its partners had spent nearly
$200,000 conmpiling the mandatory data and submitting the
application, but that the passage of the bill would strip
away the wvillage's efforts to restore and protect the
sal non of Moose Creek. She pointed out that the village had
taken on the responsibility of the restoring the creek when
no one else wuld. She discussed the nunmerous threats
globally to salnobn and offered that protecting instream
flows was one way Al askan citizens could help sal non. She
concluded that the bill would take away the existing rights
of Alaskan citizens to protect instream flows and requested
the commttee to fix the language in order maintain the
current |levels of protection for fish habitat.

GAYLA  WOODS, SELF, D LLINGHAM (via teleconference),
expressed opposition to HB 77. She stressed the inportance
of giving the residents of Al aska a voi ce.

3:47:30 PM
AT EASE

3:49:32 PM
RECONVENED

3:50: 25 PM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Senator O son noted that there were a lot nore people
opposed to the bill than for it during the public testinony
and expressed concerns regarding the |egislation. He
offered that the bill could be assigned to a subconmttee
in order to work on it and address concerns that were
rai sed by Al askans during public testinony.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that a subcommittee referral could be
an option, but that he wanted to give the sponsor of the
bill a chance to defend, discuss, and elaborate on the
i ssues that had been rai sed.

Senator O son pointed out that it was a sensitive issue

that was engendering a |lot of concerns and that there had
been a lot of testinony against the bill. He added that he

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 32 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



woul d not necessarily want to be on the subconmmittee, but
wanted it to be known as an option.

CSHB 77(RES) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 18 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

3:52:24 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:52 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 33 04/03/13 1:42 P. M



